




RESOLUTION NO. 202205-04-201 
 

A RESOLUTION CANVASSING THE RETURNS AND DECLARING THE 
RESULTS OF THE MAY 7, 2022, GENERAL ELECTION OF THE CITY 
OF MEADOWLAKES, TEXAS 

 
Whereas, pursuant to the Texas Election Code, the City Council of the. City of The City of 

New Fairview, Texas, convened on this the 16th day of May 2022, at 7:00 P.M. for the purpose of 
canvassing the vote in the general election held on May 7, 2022; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section One. Canvass of Vote - General Election. 
 

(a) There came to be considered the returns of the general election held on the 7th day of May, 
2022, for the purpose of electing Councilmembers for Places 2, 4, and 5, and appearing from said 
returns, duly and legally made; that each of the candidates in said election received the following votes: 

 

COUNCIL BY PLACE: VOTES CAST: 
 

Early/Abs. Election Total 
    

 

FOR COUNCIL, PLACE 1                                                      

Harvey Lynn Burger Jr. 

 

FOR COUNCIL, PLACE 2 

John Fissette 

 

FOR COUNCIL, PLACE 3 

Steve Misner 

 

FOR COUNCIL, PLACE 4 

Steven King 

 

FOR COUNCIL, PLACE 5 

Jimmy Royston 

John Judge  

  

24/3 

 

 

19/3 

 

 

22/3 

 

 

23/3 

 

 

 

22/2 

8/1 

 

23 

 

 

25 

 

 

23 

 

 

27 

 

 

 

19 

15 

 

50 

 

 

47 

 

 

48 

 

 

53 

 

 

 

43 

24 

 



    

    

    

    

    
    

(b) Therefore, Harvey Lynn Burger Jr., John Fissette and Steve Misner are hereby each declared as elected as 
City  Council Members, for Place 1, Place 3, and Place 5, respectively.  Each are to serve immediately after 
qualifying for the two year term expiring May 2024.  
Steven King and Jimmy Royston are hereby each declared as elected as City  Council Members, for Place 2 
and for Place 4, respectively. Each is to serve immediately after qualifying for the one year remaining term 
expiring May 2023. 

 
Section Three. Open Meetings. It is further found and determined that in accordance 
with this Resolution of this governing body that the .City Secretary posted written notice 
of the date, place, and subject of this meeting in the kiosk located at City Hall, a place 
convenient to the public, and said notice having been so posted continuously for at least 
72 hours preceding the date of this meeting.   A copy of the return of said posting shall 
be attached to the minutes of the meeting and shall be made apart thereof for all intents 
and purposes. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 16th day of May, 2022. 
 

 

ATTEST:  NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS 
____________________________ _________________________________  
Brooke Boller, City Secretary                                              John Taylor, Mayor 
 
  

_; :._· / 

- _._1\ 
' "/ 

 
 

. '< 
..,:. .. 

, ,. ·"......' 
- 



 



City of New Fairview City Council Place 1

Choice Party Absentee Voting Early Voting Election Day Voting Total
Harvey Lynn Burger Jr. 2 100.00% 11 100.00% 13 100.00% 26 100.00%

Cast Votes: 2 100.00% 11 100.00% 13 100.00% 26 100.00%

Undervotes: 0 5 5 10

Overvotes: 0 0 0 0

City of New Fairview City Council Place 2

Choice Party Absentee Voting Early Voting Election Day Voting Total
John Fissette 2 100.00% 8 100.00% 16 100.00% 26 100.00%

Cast Votes: 2 100.00% 8 100.00% 16 100.00% 26 100.00%

Undervotes: 0 8 2 10

Overvotes: 0 0 0 0

City of New Fairview City Council Place 3

Choice Party Absentee Voting Early Voting Election Day Voting Total
Steve Misner 2 100.00% 11 100.00% 14 100.00% 27 100.00%

Cast Votes: 2 100.00% 11 100.00% 14 100.00% 27 100.00%

Undervotes: 0 5 4 9

Overvotes: 0 0 0 0

City of New Fairview City Council Place 4

Choice Party Absentee Voting Early Voting Election Day Voting Total
Steven King 2 100.00% 10 100.00% 14 100.00% 26 100.00%

Cast Votes: 2 100.00% 10 100.00% 14 100.00% 26 100.00%

Undervotes: 0 6 4 10

Overvotes: 0 0 0 0

City of New Fairview City Council Place 5

Choice Party Absentee Voting Early Voting Election Day Voting Total

Jimmy Royston 2 100.00% 14 87.50% 14 77.78% 30 83.33%

John Judge 0 0.00% 2 12.50% 4 22.22% 6 16.67%

Cast Votes: 2 100.00% 16 100.00% 18 100.00% 36 100.00%

Undervotes: 0 0 0 0

Overvotes: 0 0 0 0

Cumulative Results Report

Run Time

Run Date

8:40 AM

05/09/2022

Denton County

Joint, General & Special Elections

5/7/2022

Page 26

Unofficial Results

Registered Voters

66450 of 585609 = 11.35%

Precincts Reporting

238 of 238 = 100.00%



City of New Fairview, Place 1 - Vote for None or One

Precincts

Counted Total Percent

2 2 100.00%

Voters

Ballots Registered Percent

36 0 0.00%

Choice Party Absentee Voting Early Voting Election Day Voting Total
Harvey Lynn Burger Jr. 1 100.00% 13 100.00% 10 100.00% 24 100.00%

Cast Votes: 1 100.00% 13 100.00% 10 100.00% 24 100.00%

City of New Fairview, Place 2 - Vote for None or One

Precincts

Counted Total Percent

2 2 100.00%

Voters

Ballots Registered Percent

36 0 0.00%

Choice Party Absentee Voting Early Voting Election Day Voting Total
John Fissette 1 100.00% 11 100.00% 9 100.00% 21 100.00%

Cast Votes: 1 100.00% 11 100.00% 9 100.00% 21 100.00%

City of New Fairview, Place 3 - Vote for None or One

Precincts

Counted Total Percent

2 2 100.00%

Voters

Ballots Registered Percent

36 0 0.00%

Choice Party Absentee Voting Early Voting Election Day Voting Total
Steve Misner 1 100.00% 11 100.00% 9 100.00% 21 100.00%

Cast Votes: 1 100.00% 11 100.00% 9 100.00% 21 100.00%

City of New Fairview, Place 4 - Vote for None or One

Precincts

Counted Total Percent

2 2 100.00%

Voters

Ballots Registered Percent

36 0 0.00%

Choice Party Absentee Voting Early Voting Election Day Voting Total

Steven King 1 100.00% 13 100.00% 13 100.00% 27 100.00%

Cast Votes: 1 100.00% 13 100.00% 13 100.00% 27 100.00%

Cumulative Results Report

OFFICIAL

Run Time

Run Date

8:22 PM

05/07/2022

WISE COUNTY, TX

CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT AND JOINT ELECTION

5/7/2022

Page 5

Unofficial Results

Ballots Cast

5377

Precincts Reporting

28 of 28 = 100.00%



City of New Fairview, Place 5 - Vote for None or One

Precincts

Counted Total Percent

2 2 100.00%

Voters

Ballots Registered Percent

36 0 0.00%

Choice Party Absentee Voting Early Voting Election Day Voting Total
Jimmy Royston 0 0.00% 8 57.14% 5 31.25% 13 41.94%

John Judge 1 100.00% 6 42.86% 11 68.75% 18 58.06%

Cast Votes: 1 100.00% 14 100.00% 16 100.00% 31 100.00%

City of Newark, Mayor (Unexpired Term) - Vote for None or One

Precincts

Counted Total Percent

2 2 100.00%

Voters

Ballots Registered Percent

115 0 0.00%

Choice Party Absentee Voting Early Voting Election Day Voting Total
Mark Wondolowski 0 0.00% 28 40.58% 22 51.16% 50 44.25%

Crystal Cardwell 1 100.00% 41 59.42% 21 48.84% 63 55.75%

Cast Votes: 1 100.00% 69 100.00% 43 100.00% 113 100.00%

City of Newark, Place 4 (Unexpired Term) - Vote for None or One

Precincts

Counted Total Percent

2 2 100.00%

Voters

Ballots Registered Percent

115 0 0.00%

Choice Party Absentee Voting Early Voting Election Day Voting Total
Melanie Payne 0 0.00% 42 100.00% 33 100.00% 75 100.00%

Cast Votes: 0 0.00% 42 100.00% 33 100.00% 75 100.00%

City of Newark, Place 5 (Unexpired Term) - Vote for None or One

Precincts

Counted Total Percent

2 2 100.00%

Voters

Ballots Registered Percent

115 0 0.00%

Choice Party Absentee Voting Early Voting Election Day Voting Total

Chris Raines 0 0.00% 34 49.28% 28 65.12% 62 54.87%

Jeffrey Chisholm 1 100.00% 35 50.72% 15 34.88% 51 45.13%

Cast Votes: 1 100.00% 69 100.00% 43 100.00% 113 100.00%

Cumulative Results Report

OFFICIAL

Run Time

Run Date

8:22 PM

05/07/2022

WISE COUNTY, TX

CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT AND JOINT ELECTION

5/7/2022

Page 6

Unofficial Results

Ballots Cast

5377

Precincts Reporting

28 of 28 = 100.00%



AGENDA ITEM: 3 
  

 
 
 

                          CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA MEMO 

Prepared By: John Cabrales Jr, City Administrator                                                                    May 16, 2022 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Discuss, consider, and act on the appointment of the Mayor Pro Tempore. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The Texas Local Government Code, CHAPTER 22 (ALDERMANIC FORM OF GOVERNMENT IN 
TYPE A GENERAL-LAW MUNICIPALITY), SUBCHAPTER A, (GENERAL PROVISIONS), Sec. 22.037 (b) 
(MAYOR AS PRESIDING OFFICER; PRESIDENT PRO TEMPORE) states, “At each new governing 
body's first meeting or as soon as practicable, the governing body shall elect one alderman to 
serve as president pro tempore for a term of one year.” We refer to this position as Mayor Pro 
Tempore (Mayor Pro Tem) and is referenced in the City Council Procedures & Decorum Policy. 
This Policy was adopted by the City Council on June 1, 2020, (2020-17-107), updated on May 
17, 2021, and the Mayor Pro Tem is referenced in the sections below. 
 

Sec. 1-100 – Authority 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Ordinances of the City of New Fairview, Texas, the City 
Council shall enact rules of procedure for all meetings of the City Council of the City of 
New Fairview, Texas, which shall be in effect upon their adoption by the City Council and 
until such times as they are amended or new rules adopted. These rules of procedures 
shall serve as general guidelines for Council conduct and meeting protocols. 
 
Additionally, these general rules and guidelines shall govern the procedures and 
decorum of all Council appointed boards, commissions, committees, or other advisory 
bodies. References specific to the Council, Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, or Council member 
duties and responsibilities shall apply to the advisory body, Chair, Vice Chair, and 
members respectively 

 
Sec. 1-150 – General Procedures 
 



(b)   Chair of Meeting:  The Mayor shall preside over all meetings of the City Council 
as the Tempore Chair and enforce these rules and procedures during a meeting. In the 
absence of the Mayor, the Pro Tempore shall assume the Chair’s responsibility at the 
meeting. In the absence of the Pro Tempore, the Council will choose a Chair for the 
meeting. 

 
Sec. 1-160 – Decorum 
 
(b) Mayoral Responsibilities: 
 
The Mayor is the official spokesperson for the Council on all matters unless absent, at 
which time the Mayor Pro Tempore or appropriate designee will assume the role. The 
views presented by the Mayor, or the Mayor Pro Tempore in his/her absence, should 
provide an equitable representation of all Council Members. 

 
This agenda item is for the City Council to consider the appointment of the Mayor Pro Tem. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
None 



AGENDA ITEM: 4 
  

 
 
 

                          CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA MEMO 

Prepared By: John Cabrales Jr, City Administrator                                                                    May 16, 2022 

Declination of Office by Council Member 
 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Receive, consider, and act upon the declination of office by a Council Member. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
Steve Misner ran unopposed for City Council Place Three (3), as was elected by the voters to fill 
that position based on the results of the May 7, 2022, Municipal Election. However, Mr. Misner 
moved out of the city of New Fairview just prior to the election as is no longer a resident of this 
city. He has turned a signed letter declining of the office of City Council Place 3. 
 
Per Local Gov’t. Code Section 22.012, for a resignation to be effective, it must be: 

• Written - and 
• submitted to the City’s governing body; and approved and accepted by the governing 

body. 
  
Additionally, the Tex. Elect. Code (EC) Section 201.023 requires: 
  
RESIGNATION. If an officer submits a resignation, whether to be effective immediately or at a 
future date, a vacancy occurs on the date the resignation is accepted by the appropriate 
authority or on the eighth day after the date of its receipt by the authority, whichever is 
earlier. TEX ELECTION CODE Section 201.023 
  
RESIGNING OR DECLINING OFFICE. 
(a) To be effective, a public officer’s resignation or an officer-elect’s declination must be in 
writing and signed by the officer or officer-elect and delivered to the appropriate authority for 
acting on the resignation or declination. The authority may not refuse to accept a resignation. 
 
(b) If the authority to act on a resignation or declination is a body, the resignation or declination 
may be delivered to the presiding officer of the body or to its clerk or secretary. 
  



So, for the declination to be effective, it must be written; signed; submitted to the City’s 
governing body; and either approved and accepted by Council or if not approved or accepted 
by Council, then the declination will be effective eight (8) days after the date the City received 
the declination. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 
 
I move to Accept/Take No Action On the declination of office by Steve Misner for City Council 
Place 3. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. Steve Misner declination. 





























First Quarter 2022 Investment Report
Month Beginning Balance Ending Balance Intrest 

January 2022 300,267.39 300,291.99 24.6
Febuary 2022 300,291.99 300,320.27 28.28
March 2022 300,320.27 300,393.13 72.86

125.74



 
 

City Council Minutes  
                                                       February 7, 2022 

 
STATE OF TEXAS  
COUNTY OF WISE  

CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW  
THE CITY COUNCIL CONVENED INTO A CITY COUNCIL MEETING THE SAME 

BEING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC, THE 7th DAY OF FEBRUARY IN THE NEW 
FAIRVIEW CITY HALL AND NOTICE OF SAID MEETING GIVING THE TIME 

PLACE AND SUBJECT THEREFORE HAVING BEEN POSTED AS PRESCRIBED BY 
ARTICLE 5 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE WITH THE FOLLOWING 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
CITY COUNCIL 

Mayor Nolan Schoonmaker 
Mayor Pro Tem John Taylor 

Place 1 Councilwoman Julie Burger 
Place 2 Councilman Scoot Johnson 
Place 3 Councilman Steve Misner 
Place 4 Councilman Steven King 

 
City Staff 

Ben Nibarger, City Administrator 
Brooke Boller, Interim Deputy City Secretary  

 
 

WORK SESSION:      7:00 PM 

1.  Call to Order and roll call. (Work Session called to order by Mayor Nolan Schoonmaker at 
7:00 pm; Roll Call with the above-mentioned names.) 

2.  Discussion of all items on the agenda. 

3.  Work Session discussion items: 

A. Staff presentation on the City's finances.  

  Presentation was given by City Administrator Ben Nibarger.  

B. Staff presentation on infrastructure and streets. 



Presentation was given by Ryley with Pacheco Koch, the City Engineer. Council was 
given an update on the progress with the road repair going on in Chisholm Hills as 
well as what will be needed in the future on the roads in that subdivision.  

C. Staff presentation on new home construction. 

 Council heard from the City Building Inspector Jim Estep and was given a break 
down on the fees charged as well as an update on how many building permits were 
submitted in the past and what the future is looking like for the City. 

D. Staff presentation on code enforcement activities. 

 Presentation was given by Joshua Barwell Facility Maintenance and Street 
Supervisor  

E. Staff presentation on the City Secretary recruitment. 

 City Administrator Ben Nibarger gave council an update on the number of applicants 
that have applied as well as a time schedule on when they can expect to interview the 
candidates and expected hiring date.  

F. Staff presentation regarding a common area and drainage easement maintenance agreement 
with Falcon Ridge. 

 Council heard from City Administrator Ben Nibarger on the drainage easement 
issues and who was responsible for maintaining them at this point. Ben recommends 
that the City enter into an agreement with the HOA in ensuring that the easements 
are properly maintained.  

G. Staff presentation and discussion regarding the commercial safety inspection program. 

 Council heard from East Wise Fire and Rescue Department, stating they are ready 
to look to the future and move forward working with the city to perform the gas well 
inspections under the training of Geoscience.  

4. Adjournment.  

Councilman Scott Johnson made a motion to Adjourn at 9:40pm and was Seconded 
by Mayor Pro Tem John Taylor. 

REGULAR SESSION:  7:00 PM or immediately following the Work Session. 

5. Call to Order and roll call. (Regular Session called to order by Mayor Nolan Schoonmaker at 
7:03 pm; Roll Call with the above-mentioned names.) (Regular Session called to order by 
Mayor Nolan Schoonmaker at 9:47pm pm; Roll Call with the above-mentioned names.) 

6. Pledge to the flags.  

A. United States of America  



B. Texas Flag Honor the Texas Flag, I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, 
one and indivisible. 

7. OPEN FORUM: The City Council invites persons with comments or observations related to city 
issues, projects, or policies to briefly address the City Council. Anyone wishing to speak should 
sign-in with the City Secretary before the beginning of the City Council Meeting. In order to 
expedite the flow of business and to provide all citizens the opportunity to speak, there is a three-
minute limitation on any person addressing the City Council. State law prohibits the City Council 
from discussing or taking action on any item not listed on the posted agenda.  

Ocie Vest (Project Manager of Schoop Ranch)- Spoke on behalf on City 
Administrator Ben Nibarger, stating he is one of the best he has worked with.  

Nema House- Spoke in regard to the Falcon Ridge HOA Contract, She has requested 
that council not make any decisions on the contract until the community gets the 
information they have been requesting from the HOA and they get some control over 
their community.  

David Randolf- Spoke on the removal of Ben Nibarger, stating that the council needs 
to consider the financial burden they are about to place on the city should they 
approve the removal of the City Administrator. 

Jimmy Royston- Spoke on the HOA agreement with the city, asking that the council 
not take action at this moment and showed his support to council on the removal of 
the City Administrator.  

8. NEW BUSINESS: All matters listed as New Business will be discussed and considered 
separately.  

A. Discuss, consider, and act on an ordinance of the City Council of the City of New Fairview, 
Texas, amending the City's fee schedule. 

 Motion: Councilman Scott Johnson 
 Second: Councilman Steve Misner 
 Vote: All in Favor 
 Result: Council made the motion to amending the City’s fee schedule allowing for 

commercial safety inspections to be completed at: 
  Hydrocarbon well inspections costing $2000.00 
  Manufacturing and retail locations costing $100.00 per occupied location  

B. Discuss, consider, and act on a resolution of the City Council of the City of New Fairview, 
Texas, authorizing the City Administrator to negotiate and execute an agreement with the 
Falcon Ridge developer and HOA to provide maintenance of the common areas and 
drainage easements. 

 Motion: Councilman Steven King  
 Second: Councilman Steve Misner  

Vote: All Against  
 Result: Motion did not pass  



C. Discuss, consider, and act to remove members of the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and appoint qualified residents to serve as an alternate or Commissioner on the New 
Fairview Planning and Zoning Commission. 

  Motion: Councilman Steve Misner 
 Second: Councilwoman Julie Burger 
 Vote: All in Favor   

Result: Motion passed as written; Removing three (3) Commissioners: Alisa Scheps, 
Don Duval and Arne Wissman  

 

D.  Discuss and act on an ordinance ordering the May 7th, 2022 City of New Fairview General 
Election for five (5) council members at large.  

 Motion: Councilman Steve Misner  
 Second: Councilwoman Julie Burger 
 Vote: All in Favor   
 Result: Motion passed as written.  

E. Consider the removal of Ben Nibarger as City Administrator without cause (to be acted 
upon after exec. session). 

 Motion: Councilman Steven King  
 Second: Councilman Steve Misner  
 Vote:  For: Julie Burger, Steve Misner, Steven King 
  Against: John Taylor, Scott Johnson  

Result: Motion Passed as written.  

F. Consider the removal of Ben Nibarger as City Administrator with cause (to be acted upon 
after exec. session). 

 Motion: 
 Second: 
 Vote:  

Result: No Action Taken  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



G.  Consider action on the City Attorney’s resignation under Local Government Code, Section 
22.012). 

 Motion: Councilman Steve Misner  
 Second: Councilman Scott Johnson  
 Vote: All in Favor   

Result: Motion to accept the resignation of City Attorney Larry Collister passed. 
 
 Motion: Councilman Scott Johnson 
 Second: Councilman Steve Misner 
 Vote: All in Favor  
 Result: Motion passed to appoint Messer, Fort, McDonald as the City’s legal counsel 

passed.  
  

9. EXECUTIVE SESSION: The Council may take action on any of the items listed in the Executive 
Session. The Commission will conduct a closed session pursuant to Texas Government Code, 
annotated, Chapter 551, Subchapter D for the following: 

A. Section 551.087  -  Deliberation Regarding Economic Development Negotiations with 
Constellation Lake. 

B. Section 551.074 ‐ Personnel Matters Deliberate the appointment and employment of a new 
City Attorney. 

C. Section 551.074 ‐ Personnel Matters Deliberate the dismissal of the City Administrator.  If 
the Council is to discuss the City Administrator’s performance, he has the right to take that 
discussion to open session in accordance with the terms of the his employment agreement.  

 

10. ADJOURN: 

Motion: Councilman Steve Misner  
 Second: Councilwoman Julie Burger 
 Vote: All in Favor  
 Result: Meeting was adjourned at 12:44 pm. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

MINUTES APPROVED ON THIS, THE 16th DAY OF MAY 2022: 

 

_____________________________________         __________________________________ 

Mayor Nolan Schoonmaker                                       Mayor Pro Tem John Taylor 

 

_____________________________________         __________________________________ 

Place 1 Councilwoman Julie Burger                         Place 2 Councilman Scott Johnson 

 

_____________________________________         __________________________________ 

Place 3 Councilman Steve Misner                             Place 4 Councilman Steve King 

 

 

 

            ATTEST: 

 

                                                                             _______________________________________ 

                                                                            Brooke Boller, Interim Deputy City Secretary 



 
MONTHLY COUNCIL MINUTES 

March 7, 2022 
 

STATE OF TEXAS  
COUNTY OF WISE  

CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW 
  

THE CITY COUNCIL CONVENED INTO A CITY COUNCIL MEETING THE SAME 
BEING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC, THE 7th DAY OF MARCH IN THE NEW FAIRVIEW 

CITY HALL AND NOTICE OF SAID MEETING GIVING THE TIME PLACE AND 
SUBJECT THEREFORE HAVING BEEN POSTED AS PRESCRIBED BY ARTICLE 5 

OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE WITH THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS 
PRESENT:  

CITY COUNCIL 
Mayor John Taylor  

Mayor Pro Tem Julie Burger 
Place 3 Councilman Steve Misner 
Place 4 Councilman Steven King  

 
City Staff 

Brooke Boller, City Secretary  
Roberta (Robin) Cross, City Attorney  

 
Absent 

Place 2 Councilman Scott Johnson  
Work Session: 7:00 pm 
1. Call to order and roll call. (Work Session called to order by Mayor John Taylor at 7:00 
pm, Roll call with the above-mentioned names.) 
2. Go over and review the time schedule of the hiring process for a City Administrator. 
    Council stated job applications will be accepted until 3/14. We will host a Town Hall 
meeting on 3/17 to meet the final candidates and to go through the interview process with 
Council, City Staff, P&Z as well as with any citizen who wishes to participate. Then on 3/21 
Council will make an offer.   
 
3. Discuss hiring a City Clerk. 
     Council and staff have decided to wait until a City Administrator is hired. They then 
can make the decision on hiring a City Clerk.      
 



4. Discuss a possible city ordinance on fencing. 
    Councilwoman Julie Burger wants the ordinance to state what type of material can be 
used. As well as stating that there can be no large fencing in the front of the house. 
Councilman Steven King wants City Staff to compare surrounding cities fence ordinances. 
And May John Taylor wants to insure that Planning and Zoning is involved in the process.  
 
5. Discuss possible city ordinance amending Sec. 3.01 .014 Keeping Livestock 
  Council would like to update the current ordinance from one head of livestock per acre to 
     - smaller livestock, such as goats and sheep, 2 or 3 per acre. If nursing 5 or 6 per acre. 
       - No Hogs  
       - 1 per acre, Cow, Horse, Donkey and Mule 
       - 4H and nursing exemptions 
 
6. Discuss possible city ordinance amending Sec 3.01.016 Keeping Bees 
    Council asked staff to check previous City Administrators files for the amended 
ordinance.  
7. Review of Dis-Annexation Petitions filed with the City, On 1/24/22 & 2/28/22. 
    City Attorney Robin spoke on this and informed council that a petition was turned into 
City Staff on 1/24/22. With the change in staff signatures were verified and that this 
petition was short signatures. The appropriate parties were informed of the shortage of 
signatures as well as being notified it was not going to be placed on the ballot for May. A 
second petition was turned into City Staff on 2/28/22 and all signatures were verified. But 
that the date for the Mayor to call for the election had passed on 2/25/22 and that the de-
annexation could be placed on the ballot for the November 2022 election.  
8. Adjournment 
     Mayor John Taylor adjourned the work session at 7:30 pm. All were in Favor. 
   
Regular Session immediately following work session.  
I. Call to order and roll call. ( Regular Session called to order by Mayor John Taylor at 7:30 
pm, Roll call with the above-mentioned names.) 
11. Pledge to the Flags. 
a. United States of America 
b. Texas Flag: Honor the Texas Flag, I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state 
under God, one and indivisible. 
 
Ill. Open Forum: The City Council invites persons with comments or 
observations related to city issues, projects, or policies to brie fly address the City 
Council. Anyone wishing to speak should sign-in with the City Secretary before 
the beginning of the City Council Meeting. In order to expedite the flow of 
business and to provide all citizens the opportunity to speak, there is a three minute 
limitation on any person addressing the City Council. State law prohibits 
the City Council from discussing or taking action on any item not listed on the 
posted agenda. 
      Jimmy Royston- Spoke on his disappointment that the petition was not going to be on 
the May 2022 ballot. Was disappointed that staff did not notify him until 5pm on 2/25/22 
via email that his petition was short signatures. He stated that he had spoken with both 



Denton and Wise County Election offices and was informed that the mayor could still call 
the election and his petition could be placed on the May ballot. City Attorney Robin stated 
that she would clarify with the Secretary of State. 
      Nelson Craig- Spoke to council about the de-annexation of Falcon Ridge a community 
which he resides. Also spoke on the behavior which he has seen from council over the past 
few months and stated how he did not appreciate the hate he has witnessed coming from 
some council members.  
 
IV. Consent Items: All matters as Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by 
the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will not be removed from the 
consent agenda and will be considered separately. 

a. Accept the City Council Minutes for February 15, 2022 February 21, 2022 
Motion: Councilman Steven King  
Second: Councilman Steve Misner 
Vote: All in Favor 
Result: Passed 

 
V. Recess to Executive Session to discuss matters relating to real property pursuant 
to §551.072, Texas Government Code; deliberation of economic development 
negotiations pursuant to §551.087 , Texas Government Code; discuss personnel matters 
pursuant to §551.074, Texas Government Code; (Review and deter mine City Secretary 
applicants for interview), Texas Government Code; and to consult with the City attorney 
pursuant to §551.071, Texas Government Code; 
§551.071 - Discuss, consider, and act on a resolution of a separation agreement 
between Ben Nibarger and the City of New Fairview, Texas 
 

VI. Adjourn: 

       Motion: Councilman Steve Misner 
       Second: Councilwoman Julie Burger 
       Vote: All in Favor  
       Result: Meeting adjourned at 7:59 pm. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



MINUTES APPROVED ON THIS, THE 16TH DAY OF MAY 2022 

 

____________________________________          ____________________________________ 

Mayor John Taylor                                                 Mayor Pro Tem Julie Burger  

 

____________________________________           ____________________________________ 

Place 2 Councilman Scott Johnson                        Place 3 Councilman Steve Misner 

 

___________________________________                        

Place 4 Councilman Steven King                         

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

                                                                                    ____________________________________ 

                                                                                    Brooke Boller, City Secretary  



 
City Council Minutes  

March 28, 2022  
 

STATE OF TEXAS  
COUNTY OF WISE  

CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW  
THE CITY COUNCIL CONVENED INTO A CITY COUNCIL MEETING THE SAME 

BEING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC, THE 28th DAY OF MARCH IN THE NEW 
FAIRVIEW CITY HALL AND NOTICE OF SAID MEETING GIVING THE TIME 

PLACE AND SUBJECT THEREFORE HAVING BEEN POSTED AS PRESCRIBED BY 
ARTICLE 5 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE WITH THE FOLLOWING 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
CITY COUNCIL 

Mayor John Taylor 
Mayor Pre Tem Julie Burger 

Place 3 Councilman Steve Misner 
Place 4 Councilman Steven King  

 
City Staff  

Brooke Boller, City Secretary  
Roberta (Robin) Cross, City Attorney  

 
Absent 

Place 2 Councilman Scott Johnson  
  

Regular Session: Immediately following work session. 
A. Call to order and roll call. (Regular Session called to order by Mayor John Taylor at 
7:42pm; Roll Call with the above-mentioned names.) 
B. Pledge to the Flags. 
1. United States of America 
2. Texas Flag Honor the Texas Flag, I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one 
state under God, one and indivisible. 
C. Work Session  (Work Session called to order by Mayor John Taylor at 7:43pm; Roll 
Call with the above-mentioned names.) 
1. Discuss allowing use of City Hall for three Fridays in April by the North Texas Dyslexia and 
normal rental facility procedures. 
 Mayor John Taylor stated surrounding cities charge $5 hourly for non-profit 
organizations and $20-25 per hour for profit organization. Councilman Steven King stated 



he would like an ordinance stating stipulations for renting the city facilities as well as using 
the outdoor property; all on council agreed.  
2. Presentation by Lions Club about a potential New Chapter in New Fairview. 
 
3. Adjournment 
    Mayor John Taylor called for Adjournment at 8:04 pm, All in favor.  
 
D. Public Comment: The City Council invites persons with comments or 
observations related to city issues, projects, or policies to briefly address the City 
Council. Anyone wishing to speak should sign-in with the City Secretary before the 
beginning of the City Council Meeting. To expedite the flow of business and to 
provide all citizens the opportunity to speak, there is a three-minute limitation on 
any person addressing the City Council. State law prohibits City Council from 
discussing or acting on any item not listed on the posted agenda. 
E. New Business: (New Business called to order by Mayor John Taylor at 8:04pm; Roll 
Call with the above-mentioned names.) 
1. Discuss, Consider, Act on the purchase of a new Commercial Diesel Zero 
Turn Mower. 
    Motion: Councilman Steve Misner 
    Second: Councilwoman Julie Burger 
    Vote: All in favor 
    Result: motion passed; Joshua was given permission to move forward with the zero turn 
mower from Quote # 2292809 not to exceed $16,199.22. 
2. Discuss, Consider, Act on reducing the number of bids currently required by City 
practices for work on municipal property or facilities. 
    Motion: 
    Second: 
    Vote: 
    Result: Tabled 
 
3. Discuss, Consider, Act on Hiring a City Administrator. 
   Council broke for Executive session at 8:31pm and returned at 10:09pm 
    Motion: Mayor John Taylor  
    Second: 
    Vote: All in Favor 
    Result: The New City Administrator John Cabrales Jr was given a start date of 4/4/22 
after the Contract is signed.  
 
4. Discuss, Consider, Act on making an exception to the Travel Trailer/Motor 
Home ordinance to allow a 6-month Hardship permit on Graham Road. 
    Motion: 
    Second: 
    Vote: 
    Result: Tabled 
 
F. Executive Session: (if applicable) The Council may go into closed session at any 



time when permitted by Chapters 418 or 551, Texas Government Code, to discuss matters 
relating to real property pursuant to §551.072, Texas Government Code; deliberation of 
economic development negotiations pursuant to §551.087, Texas Government Code; 
discuss personnel matters pursuant to §551.074, Texas Government Code; discuss IT 
network or critical infrastructure security pursuant to §551.089, Texas Government Code 
and to consult with the City Attorney pursuant to §551.071, Texas Government Code. 
Before going into closed session a quorum of the Council must be present, the meeting 
must be convened as an open meeting pursuant to proper notice, and the presiding officer 
must announce that a closed session will be held and must identify the sections of Chapter 
551 or 418, Texas Government Code authorizing the closed session. 
 
G. Adjourn: 

      Motion: Councilman Steven King 

      Second: Councilwoman Julie Burger 

      Vote: All in Favor 

       Result: Meeting Adjourned at 10:10 pm 

 

MINUTES APPROVED ON THIS, THE 16TH DAY OF MAY 2022 

 

____________________________________          ____________________________________ 

Mayor John Taylor                                                 Mayor Pro Tem Julie Burger  

 

____________________________________           ____________________________________ 

Place 2 Councilman Scott Johnson                        Place 3 Councilman Steve Misner 

 

___________________________________                        

Place 4 Councilman Steven King                         

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

                                                                                    ____________________________________ 

                                                                                    Brooke Boller, City Secretary  



 
City Council Minutes  

                                                    APRIL 4, 2022 
 

STATE OF TEXAS  
COUNTY OF WISE  

CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW  
THE CITY COUNCIL CONVENED INTO A CITY COUNCIL MEETING THE SAME 
BEING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC, THE 4th DAY OF APRIL IN THE NEW FAIRVIEW 
CITY HALL AND NOTICE OF SAID MEETING GIVING THE TIME PLACE AND 

SUBJECT THEREFORE HAVING BEEN POSTED AS PRESCRIBED BY ARTICLE 5 
OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE WITH THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS 

PRESENT:  
CITY COUNCIL 

Mayor John Taylor 
Mayor Pre Tem Julie Burger 

Place 2 Councilman Scott Johnson 
Place 4 Councilman Steven King  

 
City Staff  

Brooke Boller, City Secretary  
Roberta (Robin) Cross, City Attorney  

 
Absent 

Place 3 Councilman Steve Misner 
 

Regular Session: Immediately following work session 

A. Call to order and roll call (Work Session called to order by Mayor John Taylor at 7:00 
pm; Roll Call with the above-mentioned names.) 

B. Pledge to the Flags. 

1. United States of America 

2. Texas Flag Honor the Texas Flag, I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one 
and indivisible. 

C. Work Session: 



1. Discuss, consider on finalizing a Rental Agreement for the City Hall 

2. Adjournment 

D. Public Comment: The City Council invites persons with comments or observations related to 
city issues, projects, or policies to briefly address the City Council. Anyone wishing to speak 
should sign-in with the City Secretary before the beginning of the City Council Meeting. To 
expedite the flow of business and to provide all citizens the opportunity to speak, there is a three-
minute limitation on any person addressing the City Council. State law prohibits City Council 
from discussing or acting on any item not listed on the posted agenda. 

E. New Business: 

3. Discuss, Consider, Act on Phase Three of Fairview Meadows 

     Motion: Councilman Steven King 
     Second: Councilwoman Julie Burger 
     Vote: All in Favor  
     Result: Motion Passed 
 
4. Discuss, Consider, Act on amending the Development Agreement for Settlers Glenn 

     Motion: Councilman Scott Johnson 
     Second: Councilwoman Julie Burger 
     Vote: All in Favor 
     Result: Motion passed 
 
5. Discuss, Consider, Act on granting a hardship exception to the Travel Trailer/Motor Home 
ordnance by granting a 6-month hardship permit on Graham Road 

     Motion: Councilman Scott Johnson 
     Second: Councilwoman Julie Burger 
     Vote: All in Favor 
     Result: Council granted a hardship permit, with an expiration date of six months 
 
6. Discuss, Consider, Act on Hiring a City Administrator 

     Motion: Councilman Steven King 
     Second: Councilwoman Julie Burger  
     Vote: All in Favor 
     Result: Council made an employment offer to John Cabrales Jr. pending contract 
approval of all parties.   
  
F. Executive Session: The Council may go into closed session at any time when permitted by 
Chapters 418 or 551, Texas Government Code, to discuss matters relating to real property 
pursuant to §551.072, Texas Government Code; deliberation economic development negotiations 
pursuant to §551.087, Texas Government Code; discuss personnel matters pursuant to §551.074, 
Texas Government Code; discuss IT network or critical infrastructure security pursuant to 



§551.089, Texas Government Code and to consult with the City Attorney pursuant to §551.071, 
Texas Government Code. Before going into closed session, a quorum of the Council must be 
present, the meeting must be convened as an open meeting pursuant to proper notice, and the 
presiding officer must announce that a closed session will be held and must identify the sections 
of Chapter 551 or 418, Texas Government Code authorizing the closed session. 

1. Section 551.071-Monica Rodriguez v. City of New Fairview 

2. Session 551.071- Separation Agreement between Ben Nibarger and the City of New Fairview 

G. Adjourn: 

     Motion: Councilman Scott Johnson 
     Second: Councilwoman Julie Burger 
     Vote: All in Favor 
     Result: Meeting Adjourned at 8:37pm. 
 

 

MINUTES APPROVED ON THIS, THE 16TH DAY OF MAY 2022 

 

____________________________________          ____________________________________ 

Mayor John Taylor                                                 Mayor Pro Tem Julie Burger  

 

____________________________________           ____________________________________ 

Place 2 Councilman Scott Johnson                        Place 3 Councilman Steve Misner 

 

___________________________________                        

Place 4 Councilman Steven King                         

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

                                                                                    ____________________________________ 

                                                                                    Brooke Boller, City Secretary  



 



 
City Council Minutes  

                                                       May 2, 2022 
 

STATE OF TEXAS  
COUNTY OF WISE  

CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW  
THE CITY COUNCIL CONVENED INTO A CITY COUNCIL MEETING THE SAME 
BEING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC, THE 2nd DAY OF MAY IN THE NEW FAIRVIEW 
CITY HALL AND NOTICE OF SAID MEETING GIVING THE TIME PLACE AND 

SUBJECT THEREFORE HAVING BEEN POSTED AS PRESCRIBED BY ARTICLE 5 
OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE WITH THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS 

PRESENT:  
CITY COUNCIL 

Mayor John Taylor 
Mayor Pre Tem Julie Burger 

Place 2 Councilman Scott Johnson 
Place 4 Councilman Steven King  

 
City Staff  

John Cabrales Jr, City Administrator  
Brooke Boller, City Secretary  

Roberta (Robin) Cross, City Attorney  
 

Absent 
Place 3 Councilman Steve Misner 

 
WORK SESSION 

1. Call to Order and Determination of Quorum (Work Session called to order by Mayor John 
Taylor at 7:02 pm; Roll Call with the above-mentioned names.) 
2. Pledge to the Flags. 
A. United States of America 
B. Texas Flag Honor the Texas Flag, I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one 
and indivisible. 
3. Receive a report and hold a discussion regarding the launching of CivicGov. 
    A presentation was given to Council by Bill Gau and Jennifer Balonek walking them 
through what CivicGov is and how it will be used to help the city be more sufficient.  
4. Receive an update and hold a discussion on the Comprehensive Plan and the work done by the 



University of North Texas Department of Public Administration students. 
  Council was updated on the status of the work being performed by the students at UNT. 
Council heard from Professors Lauren Fisher and Rik Adamski and UNT Students 
Natalija Gajic, Emma Crotty and Adam Johnson.  
5. Receive a report and hold a discussion regarding the Community Development Block Grant 
Funding for the paving improvements of Creasser Lane and Wilson Court. 
   Council received an update on where we stand with the CDBG Grant from City 
Administrator John Cabrales Jr. 
6. Adjournment 
 
 

REGULAR SESSION 

1. Call to Order and Determination of Quorum (Regular Session called to order by Mayor 
John Taylor at 8:20 pm; Roll Call with the above-mentioned names.) 

2. Pledge to the Flags. 
A. United States of America 
B. Texas Flag Honor the Texas Flag, I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one 
and indivisible. 

3. Public Comment: The City Council invites persons with comments or observations related to 
city issues, projects, or policies to briefly address the City Council. Anyone wishing to speak 
should sign-in with the City Secretary before the beginning of the City Council Meeting. In order 
to expedite the flow of business and to provide all citizens the opportunity to speak, there is a 
three-minute limitation on any person addressing the City Council. State law prohibits the City 
Council from discussing or taking action on any item not listed on the posted agenda. 

4. Consent Agenda: All matters as Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City 
Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will not be removed from the consent agenda 
and will be considered separately. 

A. Approval of the Sept., Oct., Nov, and Dec. 2021, and Jan., Feb. and March 2022 Financial 
Reports. 

     Motion: 
     Second: 
     Vote: 
     Result: Passed 
 
B. Approve the City Council Meeting minutes for January 10, 17, and 24, 2022. 

     Motion: Councilman Scott Johnson  
     Second: Councilman Steven King  
     Vote: All in Favor 
     Result: Passed 
 



5. New Business: All matters listed in New Business will be discussed and considered 
separately. 

A. Receive, consider, and act on appointing a member to the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

     Motion: Councilman Seven King  
     Second: Councilman Scott Johnson  
     Vote: All in Favor  
     Result: Council appointed Denis Sansoucie to the Planning and Zoning Commission, 
Place 5 
 

B. Receive, consider, and act on a Resolution ratifying the City Administrator contract. 

     Motion: Councilwoman Julie Burger  
     Second: Councilman Steven King  
     Vote: All in Favor 
     Result: Council approved a Resolution ratifying and approving the City Administrator 
contact with John Cabrales Jr. 
 

C. Receive, consider, and act on a Resolution adding the City Administrator as an authorized 
signer on the City's banking and investment accounts. 

     Motion: Councilman Scott Johnson  
     Second: Councilman Steven King  
     Vote: All in Favor  
     Result: Council Approved a Resolution adding the city Administrator as an authorized 
signer on the City’s banking and investment accounts.  
 

D. Receive, consider and act upon the resignation of a Council Member. 

     Motion: Councilman Scott Johnson  
     Second: Councilwoman Julie Burger  
     Vote: All in Favor  
     Result: Council accepted the resignation of Steve Misner from City Council Place Three 
 

6. Executive Session: Recess to Executive Session to discuss matters relating to real property 
pursuant to § 551.072, Texas Government Code; deliberation of economic development 
negotiations pursuant to § 551.087, Texas Government Code; discuss personnel matters pursuant 
to §551.074, Texas Government Code; discuss IT network or critical infrastructure security 
pursuant to §551.089, Texas Government Code; and to consult with the City attorney pursuant to 
§551.071, Texas Government Code. The Council may go into closed session at any time when 
permitted by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code or Chapter 418, Texas Tax Code. Before 
going into closed session, a quorum of the Council must be present, the meeting must be 
convened as an open meeting pursuant to proper notice, the presiding officer must announce that 



a closed session will be held and must identify the sections of Chapter 551 or 418, Texas 
Government Code authorizing the closed session. 

A. Section 551.071- Separation Agreement between Ben Nibarger and the City of New Fairview 

     Motion: Councilman Steven King  
     Second: Councilwoman Julie Burger 
     Vote: All in Favor 
     Result: Motion to approve separation agreement with Ben Nibarger, former New 
Fairview City Administrator, not to exceed $156,000 in final form as approved by City 
Attorney, to be executed by the Mayor.  
 

B. Section 551.071- Resignation of Council Member 

     Motion: 
     Second: 
     Vote: 
     Result: No Action Taken 
 

7. Return to Open Session: Discuss and take appropriate action, if any, resulting from the 
discussions conducted in Executive Session. 

8. Adjournment 

     Motion: Councilwoman Julie Burger 
     Second: Councilman Steven King  
     Vote: All in Favor  
     Result: Meeting adjourned at 9:16pm  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES APPROVED ON THIS, THE 16TH DAY OF MAY 2022 

 

____________________________________          ____________________________________ 

Mayor John Taylor                                                 Mayor Pro Tem Julie Burger  

 

____________________________________           ____________________________________ 

Place 2 Councilman Scott Johnson                        Place 3 Councilman Steve Misner 

 

___________________________________                        

Place 4 Councilman Steven King                         

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

                                                                                    ____________________________________ 

                                                                                    Brooke Boller, City Secretary  

 
 



AGENDA ITEM: 8A 
  

 
 
 

                          CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA MEMO 

Prepared By: John Cabrales Jr, City Administrator                                                                    May 16, 2022 

Planning and Zoning Commission Appointment 
 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Consider and Act on appointing a member to the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
Chapter 9, Article 9.04 of the City Code of Ordinances address the composition of the Planning 
and Zoning Commission (see below).  
 
Mr. Harvey Burger has submitted his resignation from the Planning and Zoning Commission. He 
was recently elected to the City Council and cannot serve on both bodies. An application for the 
Planning and Zoning Commission has been received by Julie Burger (attached). Staff has 
confirmed that she is a resident citizen and qualified voter of the city. 
 

ARTICLE 9.04 PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

    Sec. 9.04.001     Creation and composition 

There is hereby created and established within the city, a city planning and zoning committee, 
which shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the city council. The planning and zoning committee 
shall be composed of five (5) members, three (3) of whom shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business. The members shall be resident citizens and qualified voters of the city. 
Members shall be appointed by the city council for a term of office of two (2) years, provided 
however, that two (2) members shall be initially appointed for a term of one (1) year, with those 
terms being for two (2) years thereafter. All vacancies on the planning and zoning committee shall 
be filled by appointment by the city council for the unexpired term of the vacated member. 
(Ordinance 2004-01-096, sec. 1, adopted 1/11/04; Ordinance 202103-03-222 adopted 3/1/21) 

 
 
 



Current Board Members  Place     Term 
Vacant     Place 1     (Oct. 2023) 
David Randolph   Place 2     (Oct. 2022) 
Rebecca McPherson   Place 3     (Oct. 2023) 
Marissa Randolph   Place 4     (Oct. 2022) 
Denis Sansoucie   Place 5     (Oct. 2023) 
  
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 
 
I move to Approve/Deny the appointment of Julie Burger to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, Place 1. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. Application 













AGENDA ITEM: 8B 
  

 
 
 

                          CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA MEMO 

Prepared By: John Cabrales Jr, City Administrator                                                                    May 16, 2022 

EMS Station Building Cost Authorization 
 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Consider and Act on a Resolution authorizing an increase in the not to exceed allowance for the 
remaining construction of the City’s EMS Facility. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
At the January 17, 2022, meeting, council authorized the City Administrator to obtain quotes 
for the completion of the EMS buildout based upon the City’s adopted procurement policy, 
execute an agreement for services, and amend the budget. The expenditure of this buildout 
was not to exceed $25,000. However, based on the amount already spent on this project and 
the quotes received for the remaining needed work, staff estimates that this project could cost 
approximately $43,700.  
 
The project is nearing completion, but some work is still needed in the kitchen. The cost 
replacing the cabinets and countertop is as yet unknown and is not included in the figures 
below; (This work is being required by the Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation 
inspector to comply with state and federal. Because the Facility is approximately 85 percent 
completed, the City’s options are limited.  The initial cost may have been overly optimistic, and 
it isn’t practical to obtain a single contractor to perform the remaining work.  Moreover, the 
additional costs are in some part due to continued supply disruptions and materials increases.   
Based on the amount already spent on this project to date, the quotes received for the 
remaining needed work, and the as yet determined costs, staff estimate that this project will 
cost approximately $43,700, absent any additional increases in materials. (See the Financial 
Consideration Section below for more information). 
 
However, staff recommends a not to exceed amount of $45,000 in case any contingencies come 
up as EMS staff moves in and begins to use the station. The difference of $20,000 for this 
project can be taken out of the Capital Outlay line item in the Public Safety Department budget 
for the current fiscal year. 
 



Staff is also working with Wise County EMS on a “facilities use” agreement that will be brought 
the City Council for consideration. 
 
Having an EMS station located in our municipal complex, will significantly reduce response 
times for medical calls to the residents of New Fairview and surrounding services areas. They 
will have a presence in our city and the hope is that we will be able to involve them more in 
community events and activities. It is for these reasons that staff recommends proceeding with 
the completion of this EMS station buildout and increase the not to exceed amount. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 
 

EMS Buildout Costs 
      

Description Paid or Quote Amount 
Materials Purchased Paid $3,056.27 
Windows Installation Paid $1,900.00 
Drywall Install, bed and texture, and painting Paid $7,500.00 
Drop ceiling Installation Paid $6,543.71 
HVAC work Paid $7,818.00 
Flooring Paid $4,697.55 
Doors, hinges and locksets Paid $2,353.00 
Electrical Paid $4,511.00 
Electrical for kitchen Quote $800.00 
Electrical for ambulance bay Quote $500.00 
Exit ramps for ambulance bay Quote $4,000.00 
Estimated Total   $43,679.53 
As of 5/16/2022 

 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 
 
I move to Approve/Deny a Resolution authorizing an increase of $45,000, in the not to exceed 
allowance, for the remaining construction of the City’s EMS Facility. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. Resolution 202205-05-202 



                                           RESOLUTION 
202205-05-202 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS AUTHORIZING AN 
INCREASE NOT TO EXCEED ALLOWANCE FOR THE REMAINING 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE CITY’S EMS FACILITY  

 
WHEREAS, On January 17, 2022, the City Council previously approved completion of the City’s  

EMS Facility, in an amount not to exceed $25,000; and 
 

WHEREAS, based on supply chain delays, inflation and resulting materials cost increases, the 
total amount needed to complete the remaining completion and finish-out will exceed the monetary 
allowance previously approved by the Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds it is in the public interest to complete the EMS Facility, to 

provide first responder services within the City.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
That the Not-to-Exceed amount authorized by Council at its January 17, 2022 meeting is hereby increased 
to $45,000.00. 

 
 

 
PRESENTED AND PASSED on the 16th day of May, 2022, at a meeting of the New Fairview City 
Council.  
 
 
 
APPROVED:             ATTESTED: 
 
 
_________________________________        __________________________________ 
  
John Taylor, Mayor            Brooke Boller, City Secretary    
          
 


	May 16th 2022 Agenda
	May 2022 Canvass of election resolution (1)
	RESOLUTION NO. 202205-04-201
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, THAT:
	COUNCIL BY PLACE: VOTES CAST:
	Section Three. Open Meetings. It is further found and determined that in accordance with this Resolution of this governing body that the .City Secretary posted written notice of the date, place, and subject of this meeting in the kiosk located at City...
	Section Three. Open Meetings. It is further found and determined that in accordance with this Resolution of this governing body that the .City Secretary posted written notice of the date, place, and subject of this meeting in the kiosk located at City...

	ATTEST:  NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS
	____________________________ _________________________________

	Denton-County-Unofficial-Results (1)
	Wise-County-Unoffical-Results (1)
	Mayor Pro Tem Agenda Sheet (May 16, 2022) (1)
	Declination of Council Office Agenda Sheet (May 16, 2022) (1)
	Steve Misner Resignation Letter 5-13-22
	April 2022 Monhtly Financial Report
	TX Class Investment Report First Quarter 2022 (2)
	Febuary 7th Minutes 
	March 7, 2022 Minutes
	March 28, 2022 Minutes
	April 4, 2022 Minutes
	May 2,2022 Minutes 
	P&Z Appointment Agenda Sheet (May 16, 2022) (1)
	ARTICLE 9.04 PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

	Julie Burger PZ Application (2)
	EMS Station Building Cost Authorization Agenda Sheet (May 16, 2022) (1)
	EMS Facility Increase v2 (2)
	RESOLUTION 202205-05-202
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:


